

REVISED 3/8/18

# Pennsylvania Program Service Standards for Ryan White Part B Eligible Services

Table of Contents:

I.	Child Care Services	2
II.	Early Intervention Services (EIS)	2-3
III.	Emergency Financial Assistance	3-4
IV.	Food Bank/ Home Delivered Meals	5-6
V.	Health Education/Risk Reduction	6-7
VI.	Health Insurance Premium and Cost Sharing Assistance	7-8
VII.	Home and Community- Based Health Services	8-9
VIII.	Home Health Care	9-11
IX.	Hospice	11-12
X.	Housing Services	12-13
XI.	Linguistic Services (Translation and Interpretation)	13-14
XII.	Medical Case Management	14-23
XIII.	Medical Nutrition Therapy	23-24
XIV.	Medical Transportation Services	24-26
XV.	Mental Health Services	26-28
XVI.	Non-Medical Case Management	28-29
XVII.	Other Professional Services	29-30
XVIII.	Oral Health Care	30-32
XIX.	Outpatient/Ambulatory Health Services	32-35
XX.	Outreach Services	35
XXI.	Psychosocial Support	36-37
XXII.	Referral for Healthcare/ Supportive Services	37
XXIII.	Respite Care	37-38
XXIV.	Substance Abuse Services (Outpatient)	38-39
XXV.	Substance Abuse Services (Residential)	39-40
XXVI.	Taxonomy for Ryan White Eligible Services	40-46

Formatted ...

Style Definition ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: Ryan White Part B ¶

Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Moved (insertion) [1]

Formatted ...

Moved (insertion) [2]

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...

Deleted: . . . . 2

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: .

Formatted ...

Deleted: and Congregate

Formatted ...

Deleted: . . . . 4-8

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: . . . . 8-10

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: . 10

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: . . 10-11

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: . . . . . 11-14 .

Formatted ...

Deleted: . . . . . 14-15

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

REVISED 3/8/18

## I. CHILD CARE SERVICES

Intermittent child care services for the children living in the household of HIV-infected clients for the purpose of enabling clients to attend medical visits, related appointments, and/or RWHAP-related meetings, groups, or training sessions.

Allowable use of funds includes:

1. A licensed or registered child care provider to deliver intermittent care
2. Informal child care provided by a neighbor, family member, or other person (with the understanding that existing federal restrictions prohibit giving cash to clients or primary caregivers to pay for these services)
3. Subrecipient shall ensure proper documentation is maintained including:
  - a. Date and duration of each unit of child care service provided
  - b. Determination of client eligibility
  - c. Reason why child care was needed e.g., client medical or other appointment or participation in a Ryan White – related meeting, group, or training session
  - d. Any recreational and social activities including documentation that they were provided only within a certified or licensed provider setting.
4. Where informal child care arrangements are obtained, subrecipient must ensure:
  - a. Documentation of compliance with grantee-required mechanism for handling payments for informal child care arrangements
  - b. Appropriate liability release forms are obtained that protect the client, provider and the Ryan White program
  - c. Documentation that no cash payments are being made to clients or primary care givers
  - d. Documentation that payment is for actual costs of service.

## II. EARLY INTERVENTION SERVICES (EIS)

The elements of EIS often overlap with other service category descriptions; however, EIS is the combination of such services rather than a stand-alone service. RW Part B eligible recipients should be aware of programmatic expectations that stipulate the allocation of funds into specific service categories.

Prior written approval by the PA DOH is required for funding this category. Any request for funding this category of service must be submitted in writing to the Division of HIV. The request must detail how the provider will meet all 4 required components of this category.

RWHAP Part B EIS services must include the following **four** components:

1. **Targeted HIV testing** to help the unaware learn of their HIV status and receive referral to HIV care and treatment services if found to be HIV-infected.

Formatted: Header

Deleted: 1 ¶

Formatted: Footer, Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single

**REVISED 3/8/18**

- a. Recipients must coordinate these testing services with other HIV prevention and testing programs to avoid duplication of efforts.
- b. HIV testing paid for by EIS cannot supplant testing efforts paid for by other sources.

**2. Referral services** to improve HIV care and treatment services at key points of entry

- a. Subrecipients must establish memoranda of understanding (MOU) with key points of entry into care to facilitate access to care for those who test positive.

**3. Access and linkage to HIV care and treatment services** such as: HIV Outpatient/Ambulatory Health Services, Medical Case Management, and Substance Abuse Care.

**4. Outreach Services and Health Education/Risk Reduction** related to HIV diagnosis.

**III. EMERGENCY FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE**

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that Emergency Financial Assistance provides limited one-time or short-term payments to assist the RW eligible client with an emergent need for paying for essential utilities, housing, food (including groceries, and food vouchers), transportation, and medication. Emergency financial assistance can occur as a direct payment to an agency, utility company, or through a voucher program.
2. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that funds are available to people with HIV/AIDS who present an emergency need, which has resulted from an unexpected occurrence or set of circumstances demanding immediate course of action. It is expected that all other sources of funding in the community for emergency financial assistance will be effectively used and that any allocation of funds for these purposes will be as the payer of last resort., and for limited amounts, uses, and periods of time. Continuous provision of an allowable service to a client should not be funded thorough emergency financial assistance.
3. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that proper documentation of emergency situations is presented. This documentation shall be in the form of shut off notices for essential utilities (gas, electric, heating fuel, water), or a letter of eviction from a landlord.
4. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that intake sites submitting applications for emergency financial assistance have already pre-screened and pre-approved clients, based upon standards and qualifications provided for in these service provisions.

Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: RWHAP	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: Emergency financial assistance is the provisio	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: &	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ),	
Formatted	...
Deleted: , or a letter denying coverage for medications	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...







**REVISED 3/8/18**

- c. Education on health care coverage options (e.g., qualified health plans through the Marketplace, Medicaid coverage).
- d. Health literacy.
- e. Treatment adherence education.

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that Health Education/Risk Reduction services cannot be delivered anonymously.

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that it employs staff with appropriate educational background, and training compliance shall be maintained to meet all standards regarding:

a. Staff Credentialing Files:

- i. SUBRECIPIENTS will maintain training files for all part-time or full time care (including consultants) and supervisory staff.
- ii. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that all staff have completed training in HIV related care, appropriate to their level of care interaction.

b. Documentation Requirements:

- i. A completed intake shall include at a minimum: Client name; address and phone number; mode of transmission and other demographic information as required by CAREWare or the provider's Electronic Medical Record. The provider must ensure that this documentation is kept in a system that allows review upon request.
- ii. A consumer rights form, and consent for services signed by the consumer during the first face-to-face contact.

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure consumers receiving Health Education/Risk Reduction services are moved to an inactive status when the client chooses not to participate in services for a period of ninety (90) days. The agency may keep a case open beyond the ninety (90) day period if it is the policy of the agency to do so.

5. The selection of an appropriate Effective Behavioral Interventions shall be made. It must be listed in the CDC's Compendium of Effective Behavioral Interventions, and be among those supported by the Pennsylvania Department of Health.

**VI. Health Insurance Premium and Cost Sharing Assistance for Low-Income Individuals.**

Health Insurance Premium and Cost Sharing Assistance provides financial assistance for eligible clients living with HIV to maintain continuity of health insurance or to receive medical and pharmacy benefits under a health care coverage program. To use funds for health insurance premium and cost-sharing assistance, a subrecipient must implement a methodology that incorporates the following requirements:

This block contains a vertical list of redaction and editing marks. Each mark consists of a rectangular box with a red border and a red arrow pointing to a specific location in the document's text. The boxes contain the following text in order from top to bottom: Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted:, Deleted:, Formatted, Formatted, Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted:, Deleted: a., Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted:, Deleted: <#>This will include all licensed and, Formatted, Deleted: <#>, Formatted, Deleted: ¶, Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted:, Deleted: i. SUBRECIPIENTS will maintain a, Formatted, Deleted: CAREWare ¶, Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted: ¶, Moved down [5]: SUBRECIPIENT shall, Formatted, Deleted: ¶, Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted:, Formatted, Deleted:.













**REVISED 3/8/18**

- Eligible housing services can include housing that provides some type of core medical or support services (such as residential substance use disorder services or mental health services, residential foster care, or assisted living residential services).
- SUBRECIPIENT shall document the necessity of housing services for the purpose of access to or adherence to HIV-related outpatient/ambulatory health services.
- SUBRECIPIENT further agrees to have mechanisms in place to allow newly identified clients access to housing services. SUBRECIPIENTS must assess every client's housing needs at least annually to determine the need for new or additional services.
- SUBRECIPIENT agrees that transitional, short-term, or emergency housing provides temporary assistance necessary to prevent homelessness, and the duration of this assistance does not exceed 24 months. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) defines transitional housing as up to 24 months and HRSA/HAB recommends using HUD's definition as their standard.
- SUBRECIPIENT agrees that Housing services cannot be in the form of direct cash payments to clients and cannot be used for security deposits or mortgage payments. Housing services, as described here, replaces the guidance provided in PCN 11-01.
- SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that a "Consent to Service Form is signed by the consumer, dated, and witnessed during the first face-to-face contact. This form will include the agencies general expectation of the client, grievance procedure, consequences of non-compliance with the plan, relevant re-entry requirements, and assurance of privacy and confidentiality.
- SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that each client receiving (housing) support services has progress notes completed and must be placed in each client's file.

**XI. LINGUISTIC SERVICES (Translation and Interpretation)**

Linguistic Services provide interpretation and translation services, both oral and written, to eligible clients. These services must be provided by qualified linguistic services providers as a component of HIV service delivery between the healthcare provider and the client. These services are to be provided when such services are necessary to facilitate communication between the provider and client and/or support delivery of RWHAP-eligible services.

- SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that all interpreters employed must adhere to the Code of Ethics as determined by the Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf. Furthermore, services provided must comply with the National Standards for Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS).

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted: that recipients and SUBRECIPIENTs consider

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Moved (insertion) [8]

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶

Moved up [6]: IX.

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...





**REVISED 3/8/18**

- i. Medical Case Management (MCM) and Outpatient Ambulatory Health Services (OAHS) SUBRECIPIENTS are primarily responsible for certification. However, this does not exempt other Care services SUBRECIPIENTS from initiating certification, to facilitate access to Care services and ensure continuity of care.
- ii. Clients with current documentation on file may be recertified without being physically present. All clients are to be reassessed and recertified every six months based on the date of their initial certification or recertification. This can be a client self attestation that nothing has changed from the previous complete annual assessment.
- iii. For clients without current documentation on file, certification will take place at the client's next MCM encounter.
- iv. Certification should be completed within 30 days from the time of intake/reassessment. A client may not continue to receive Ryan White eligible services if they have not satisfied all certification requirements.
- v. Once the client is deemed eligible, the SUBRECIPIENT may count the service units provided to that client as "Ryan White eligible service units" from the moment of intake but no more than 30 days prior to completing certification.
  - 1) If the documentation subsequently determines that the client is not eligible, those services may not be counted as "Ryan White service units" and the client may not be considered a Ryan White client. If a client is determined to be ineligible for Ryan White funded services, the SUBRECIPIENT may still provide services, but may not use Ryan White eligible funds.
  - 2) The agency completing the certification must maintain all certification documents.
  - 3) If the SUBRECIPIENT is unable to provide services absent Ryan White eligible funds, they must document making appropriate referrals to other SUBRECIPIENTS who may provide the appropriate services.

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that efforts to contact a client will continue for eight (8) weeks after receiving an initial referral, at which time case shall be terminated and SUBRECIPIENT will develop written protocols to be followed related to attempts to contact clients and termination procedures.

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...

Deleted: . ii. - All SUBRECIPIENTS making referral

Formatted ...

Moved (insertion) [12]

Formatted ...

Moved (insertion) [13]

Formatted ...

Moved (insertion) [14]

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Moved up [13]: For clients without current

Deleted: ¶

Moved up [14]: Certification should be

Formatted ...

Deleted: Ryan White services may be renew

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted: <#>If a person is deemed ineligib

Formatted ...

Deleted: <#>

Formatted ...

Moved up [12]: <#>All clients are to be

Formatted ...

Deleted: <#>Clients not certified within

Formatted ...

Deleted: <#>support

Formatted ...

Deleted: <#>service absent Ryan White

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...



**REVISED 3/8/18**

6. SUBRECIPIENT shall obtain, at least every six (6) months, documentation from every client's HIV medical provider with prescribing privileges (e.g. doctor of osteopathic medicine, medical doctor, nurse practitioner and/or physician's assistant) dates of medical visits, dates and values of CD4 counts, dates and values of viral loads, and most recent HIV antiretroviral medications prescribed in the preceding six (6) months. The documentation must be kept in the client's file.

7. SUBRECIPIENT shall incorporate the information received every six (6) months from the client's HIV medical provider (HIV medical visits, CD4 counts, viral loads, and HIV antiretroviral medications prescribed) into the client's assessment, utilize the information in developing and evaluating the client's service care plan goals, and use as a basis for treatment adherence activities.

8. Prior to a client's assessment, SUBRECIPIENT must ensure that the client is given an overview of case management services as well as an overview of the roles and responsibilities of the case manager and the client. The client's file must contain a form signed (Client/Medical Case Manager Agreement) by that client and the medical case manager which indicates that the client has received this overview of medical case management services, including his/her rights and responsibilities, as well as the roles and responsibilities of the medical case manager. If this form does not already exist, it must be created by the SUBRECIPIENT no later than thirty (30) days after the beginning of the contract agreement year.

9. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that the Agreement for Medical Case Management includes:

- a. the client's decision to receive medical case management at the agency;
- b. the definition of medical case management;
- c. the right to change or discontinue services;
- d. consequences of non-compliance with the medical case manager or agency, and;
- e. Relevant re-entry requirements.

If these forms do not already exist, they must be created by the SUBRECIPIENT no later than thirty (30) days after the initiation of this contract.

10. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that the client is given and either reads, or is read, the document, signs and dates a Medical Case Management Agreement; an agency grievance procedure form, and release forms that detail the relevant confidentiality laws.

11. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that in addition to the Medical Case Management Agreement, each client is verbally informed of client rights and responsibilities and is provided a written "Bill of Client Rights and Responsibilities," (hereafter referred to as the "Bill of Client Rights," which includes but is not limited to:

Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: Ryan White Fiscal Year.	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...

















REVISED 3/8/18

3. SUBRECIPIENT may use these funds to provide transportation by:
  - a. Providing tokens, trans-passes, taxi vouchers or mileage reimbursements to cover the fare for public transit, taxi cab or private automobiles which is available when clients have the physical and mental capacity to use such services;
  - b. Entering into contracts with SUBRECIPIENTs of integrated or public transit services;
  - c. Including nonprofit agencies, transit authorities and licensed common carriers;
4. SUBRECIPIENTS should ensure all mileage reimbursement (through a non-cash system) that enables clients to travel to needed medical or other support services, but should not in any case exceed the established rates for federal programs. (Federal Joint Travel Regulations provide further guidance on this subject)
5. SUBRECIPIENT will ensure that any and all transport has the appropriate insurance coverage for the transport of groups and/or individuals.
6. SUBRECIPIENT shall:
  - a. Require, verify and document that commercial transportation vendors are licensed;
  - b. Require, verify and document that non-commercial transport, are properly licensed and insured (this shall include volunteers). Insurance coverage information will be kept on file and made available upon the request;
7. SUBRECIPIENT further assures that priority will be given to non-ambulatory individuals and or individuals unable to travel alone.
8. SUBRECIPIENT shall assure that costs for transportation for medical providers to provide care should be categorized under the services category for the service being provided.
9. Unallowable costs include:
  - a. Direct cash payments or cash reimbursements to clients;
  - b. Direct maintenance expenses (tires, repairs, etc.) of a privately-owned vehicle;
  - c. Any other costs associated with privately-owned vehicle such as lease, loan payments, insurance, license, or registration fees.
10. The SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that transportation provided under these provisions will not to be used for:
  - a. Social or recreational purposes and should be non-stop to service destination and back.

Formatted	...
Moved up [11]: <#>¶	...
Deleted: <#>Medical care services ¶	...
Deleted: <#>suppliers ¶	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: to SUBRECIPIENTs	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: ensure this in the following manner:	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: This	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: );	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: under	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...

**REVISED 3/8/18**

- b. Medical emergencies or situations that would normally be referred to an ambulance service or "911."

11. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure proper documentation for all services received.

Documentation shall include:

- a. Client demographics (to include client identifier, race, age and address)
- b. Whether trips were one-way or round trip
- c. Purpose of trip
- d. Mode of transportation provided client

12. SUBRECIPIENT is responsible to receive transportation request by fax, by mail or by telephone between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday (except holidays)

13. SUBRECIPIENT will arrange, through subcontracted transportation carriers, to provide holiday, weekend and evening transportation services when possible.

14. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that agency drivers keep logbooks that records trips to include:

- a. Number of transported clients
- b. Beginning and ending location of each trip
- c. Number of miles
- d. Duration of trip

**XV. MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES**

Mental Health Services are the provision of outpatient psychological and psychiatric screenings, assessment, diagnosis, treatment, and counseling services offered to clients living with HIV. Services are based on a treatment plan, conducted in an outpatient group or individual session, and provided by a mental health professional licensed within Pennsylvania to render such services.

- 1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to subcontract with credentialed **Mental Health Providers** to provide treatment services which are goal oriented and designed to maximize the personal and informal resources, linking clients to community and formal resources as needed and to assure that these resources are the least restrictive as possible to provide specialized services for persons living with HIV/AIDS
- 2. Service SUBRECIPIENT credentialing compliance shall be maintained to meet all standards regarding:

Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: "	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...





















**REVISED 3/8/18**

**XXII. PSYCHOSOCIAL SUPPORT SERVICES**

Psychosocial support services provide group or individual support and counseling services to assist eligible people living with HIV to address behavioral and physical health concerns. These services may include bereavement counseling and HIV support groups.

1. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that it employs staff with the appropriate educational background and credentialing. Compliance shall be maintained to meet all standards regarding:
  - a. Staffing Credentialing Files:
    - i. SUBRECIPIENTS will maintain credentialing files for all part-time or full-time care (including consultants) and supervisory staff.
    - ii. This will include all licensed and non-licensed staff providing support and counseling activities, child abuse and neglect counseling, HIV support groups, pastoral care, caregiver support, and bereavement counseling.
  - b. Documentation Requirements:
    - i. A completed intake sheet/assessment shall include at a minimum: Client name; address and phone number; mode of transmission and other demographic information as required by CAREWare.
      - 1) A determination if psychosocial support services are appropriate.
      - 2) A consumer rights form, and consent for psychosocial support services signed by the consumer during the first face-to-face contact.
2. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that funds appropriated by the recipient are utilized as a payer of last resort for provision of services.
3. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that it maintains a log of all referrals of clients for medical case management, mental health, and other relevant services. PADOH reserves the right to review this information on request. This information shall also be reflected in the client's progress notes as appropriate.
4. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that progress notes will be regularly documented in the client's chart in the Data Assessment/Plan (DAP) Format, or a system which includes the counselor's:
  - a. Relevant observations of the interaction.
  - b. An analysis/evaluation of the interaction, and
  - c. The plan of action resulting from the interaction.

Formatted ...

Moved up [21]: ¶

Deleted: ¶

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: , including nutrition counseling by a non

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted: SUBRECIPIENTS will maintain a

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted: <#>Clinical Supervision Staff Orientatid

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: PaDOH

Formatted ...

Deleted:

Formatted ...

Moved (insertion) [5]

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

**REVISED 3/8/18**

5. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure consumers receiving psychosocial support services are moved to inactive status when the client chooses not to participate in services for a period of ninety (90) days, or when a client's behavior is contrary to the philosophy of the agency. The agency may keep a case open beyond the ninety (90) day period if it is the policy of the agency to do so.
6. SUBRECIPIENT shall make a reasonable, documented attempt to assure that an evaluation between the counselor and client occurs in a face-to-face interview, either when the case becomes inactive or at the closing of the case. The counselor must determine with the client, whether the agreed upon treatment plans were effective. If a face-to-face interview is not possible, then a phone interview will be conducted. If no contact can be made, this fact shall be documented in the client chart.

**XXIII. Referral for Health Care/Supportive Services**

Referral for Health Care and Support Services directs clients to needed core medical or support services in person or through telephone, written, or other type of communication. This service may include referrals to assist eligible clients to obtain access to other public and private programs for which they may be eligible (e.g., Medicaid, Medicare Part D, PA Special Pharmaceutical Benefits Program, Pharmaceutical Manufacturer's Patient Assistance Programs, and other state or local health care and supportive services, or health insurance Marketplace plans).

Referrals for health care and support services provided by outpatient/ambulatory providers should be reported under the Outpatient/Ambulatory Health Services category. The same as referrals for health care and support services provided by case managers (medical and non-medical) providers should be reported in the appropriate case management category.

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to build and maintain effective relationships with community partners, and, whenever possible, sign a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the implementing agency and community partners to facilitate the referral process.
2. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure Referral for Health Care Services should assist clients through the health care system and HIV Continuum of Care. Services focus on assisting client's entry into and movement through the Ryan White Care service delivery network.

**XXIV. Respite Care**

Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: client is non-compliant, or their	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: State Pharmacy Assistance Programs	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted: includes benefits/entitlement counseling ar	
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	...
Formatted	...
Deleted:	
Formatted	...
Deleted: 1 ¶	
Formatted	...

**REVISED 3/8/18**

**Respite care is the provision of periodic, non-continuous care in a community or home-based settings that includes non-medical assistance, designed to provide care for an HIV-infected client to relieve the primary caregiver responsible for the day-to-day care of an adult or minor living with HIV.**

- 1. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure recreational and social activities are allowable program activities as part of a respite care service, **provided in a licensed or certified provider setting including drop-in centers within HIV Outpatient/Ambulatory Health Services or satellite facilities.**
- 2. SUBRECIPIENT shall insure funds may not be used for off premise social/recreational activities or to pay for a client's gym membership.
- 3. SUBRECIPIENT shall insure funds may be used to support informal, home-based Respite Care, but liability issues should be included in the consideration of this expenditure.
- 4. SUBRECIPIENT shall insure that no direct cash payments to clients is permitted.

**XXV. SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES (Outpatient Care)**

- 1. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that it is currently licensed by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to provide substance abuse treatment services, and fully complies with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of Health and **the Department of Drug and Alcohol Services.**
- 2. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Substance Abuse Outpatient Care is the provision of outpatient services for the treatment of drug or alcohol use disorders. Services include:
  - a. Screening
  - b. Assessment
  - c. Diagnosis, and/or
  - d. Treatment of substance use disorder, including:
    - i. Pretreatment/recovery readiness programs
    - ii. Harm reduction
    - iii. **Behavioral health counseling associated with substance use disorder**
    - iv. Outpatient drug-free treatment and counseling
    - v. Medication assisted therapy
    - vi. Neuro-psychiatric pharmaceuticals
    - vii. Relapse prevention
    - viii. Acupuncture therapy may be allowable only when, as part of a substance use disorder treatment program funded under the RWHAP, it is included in a documented plan.

Formatted

Deleted: ¶

Formatted

Deleted: a

Formatted

Deleted: ¶

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted: ¶

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Deleted: OUTPATIENT CARE

Formatted

Deleted:

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted

Deleted: Office

Formatted

Deleted: Addiction

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted



12. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that a discharge summary is completed within one (1) week of the client's discharge from the outpatient substance abuse facility.

**XXVI. SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES (Residential)**

1. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that it is currently licensed by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to provide substance abuse treatment services, and fully complies with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of Health and the Department of Drug and Alcohol Services.

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Substance Abuse Residential Care is the provision of outpatient services for the treatment of drug or alcohol use disorders. Services include:

- a. Screening
- b. Assessment
- c. Diagnosis, and/or
- d. Treatment of substance use disorder, including:
  - i. Pretreatment/recovery readiness programs
  - ii. Harm reduction
  - iii. Behavioral health counseling associated with substance use disorder
  - iv. Medication assisted therapy
  - v. Neuro-psychiatric pharmaceuticals
  - vi. Relapse prevention
  - vii. Detoxification, if offered in a separate licensed residential setting (including a separately -licensed detoxification facility with in the walls of an inpatient medical or psychiatric hospital)
  - viii. Acupuncture therapy may be allowable only when, as part of a substance use disorder treatment program funded under the Ryan White eligible services and it is included in a documented service plan.

**Formatted:** Header

**Deleted:** ¶  
SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that an aftercare plan is developed within the final two weeks of the client's outpatient substance abuse treatment program. This shall be noted on the client's care plan. ¶

**Formatted:** Font: Arial

**Deleted:**

**Formatted:** Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

**Moved (insertion) [4]**

**Formatted:** Font: Arial

**Formatted:** Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single, Keep lines together

**Moved (insertion) [3]**

**Formatted:** Font: Arial

**Formatted:** Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single, Keep lines together, Tab stops: 0.38", Left

**Formatted:** Right: 0", Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.75" + Indent at: 1", Keep lines together

**Moved (insertion) [17]**

**Formatted:** Font: Arial

**Deleted:**

**Moved (insertion) [22]**

**Formatted:** Font: Arial

**Formatted:** Indent: Left: 1.38", Hanging: 0.13", Right: 0", Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Right + Aligned at: 1" + Indent at: 1.25", Keep lines together

**Formatted:** Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

**Deleted:** 1 ¶

**Formatted:** Footer, Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single



Formatted: Header

**TAXONOMY**  
***Further clarification of the Sub Service Name is indicated in Italics***

<u>Service Category</u>	<u>Service Definitions</u>	<u>Sub-Service Name</u>	<u>1 Unit =</u>
<u>Child Care Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Child Care Services</u>	<u>30 minutes</u>
<u>Early Intervention Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Early Intervention Services</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
<u>Emergency Financial Assistance</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Food</u>	<u>1 Food Voucher</u>
		<u>Housing support - RW Only</u> <i>(Not for Mortgage payments; Not for Security Deposits)</i>	<u>1 Day</u>
		<u>Medications</u>	<u>1 filled prescription</u>
		<u>Transportation</u>	<u>1 Way Trip or 1 Round trip</u>
		<u>Utilities</u>	<u>1 Bill / Expense</u>
<u>Food Bank/Home and Congregate Meals</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Congregate meals - Group Setting</u>	<u>1 meal</u>
		<u>Home Delivered Meals</u> <i>(The number of meals and deliveries of meals to HIV+ clients. This does not reflect finances to purchase food or meals.)</i>	<u>1 meal</u>
		<u>Food Bank</u> <i>(This represents the number of visits to the food bank.)</i>	<u>1 Visit</u>
		<u>Food Bank Voucher</u>	<u>1 Voucher</u>
		<u>Nutritional Supplements</u>	<u>1 Item</u>
		<u>Water Filter</u>	<u>1 Item</u>
		<u>Water Filter Replacement</u>	<u>1 Item</u>

Deleted: 1 ¶

Formatted: Footer, Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single

**REVISED 3/8/18**

Formatted: Header

<u>Health Education / Risk Reduction</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Health Education / Risk Reduction</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
<u>Health Insurance Premium and Cost Sharing Assistance.</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Medicare Supplement - Premiums</u>	<u>1 Premium</u>
		<u>Medicare Supplement - Deductibles</u>	<u>1 Deductible</u>
		<u>Medicare Supplement - Co-Payments</u>	<u>1 Co-Payment</u>
		<u>Other Health Insurance - Premiums</u>	<u>1 Premium</u>
		<u>Other Health Insurance - Deductibles</u>	<u>1 Deductible</u>
		<u>Other Health Insurance - Co-Payments</u>	<u>1 Co-Payment</u>
<u>Home and Community-based Health Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Day treatment or other Partial Hospitalization Services</u>	<u>1 Day</u>
		<u>Durable Medical Equipment</u>	<u>1 Item</u>
		<u>Home Health Aid Services / Personal Care Services in the Home</u>	<u>1 Hour</u>
		<u>Specialized Care</u>	<u>1 Hour</u>
<u>Home Health-Care</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Home Health Care</u>	<u>1 hour</u>
<u>Hospice Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Residential</u>	<u>1 Day</u>
		<u>In Home Hospice Care</u>	<u>1 hour</u>
<u>Housing Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Housing Assistance/ Information Services - RW Only</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Housing support - RW Only (Not for Mortgage payments; Not for Security Deposits)</u>	<u>1 Day</u>

Deleted: 1 ¶  
Formatted: Footer, Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single

**REVISED 3/8/18**

<u>Housing Services Continued...</u>		<u>Short-term rent, mortgage and utility payments (STRMU) - HOPWA Only</u>	<u>\$1.00</u>
		<u>Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) - HOPWA Only</u>	<u>\$1.00</u>
		<u>Permanent Housing Placement - HOPWA Only</u> <u>Security deposits &amp; 1st month's rent - not to exceed 2 months</u>	<u>\$1.00</u>
		<u>Supportive Services - Case management - HOPWA Only</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
<u>Linguistics Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Translation / Interpretation Svcs</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
<u>Medical Case Management Services (including Treatment Adherence)</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Intake</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Assessment</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Reassessment / Recertification</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Follow Up (Problem Solving / General Support)</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Referral</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Treatment Adherence</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
<u>Medical Nutrition Therapy</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Medical Nutrition Therapy</u>	<u>1 Hour</u>
<u>Medical Transportation Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>1 - Bus Pass, Train Token, Taxi Voucher (Public transportation of clients to core medical or support service locations)</u>	<u>1 Way Trip or 1 Round Trip</u>
		<u>Transportation by Agency Staff Member - TIME (to transport clients to core medical or support service locations)</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Transportation by Agency Staff Member - Mileage (to transport clients to core medical or support service locations)</u>	<u>1 Way Trip or 1 Round Trip</u>

Formatted: Header

Deleted: 1 ¶  
Formatted: Footer, Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single

**REVISED 3/8/18**

<u>Medical Transportation Services Continued...</u>		<u>Reimbursement - Volunteer/ Consumer - Gas Card Only</u> <i>(clients transporting themselves or volunteers transporting clients to core medical or support services locations). Not to exceed established rates for Federal Joint Travel Regulations. See definition for further clarification.</i>	1 Gas Card
<u>Mental Health Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Professional Counseling</u>	1 hour
		<u>Psychiatric Counseling</u>	1 hour
		<u>Psychiatric In - Patient</u>	1 Day
<u>Non-Medical Case Management</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Intake</u>	15 minutes
		<u>Assessment</u>	15 minutes
		<u>Reassessment / Recertification</u>	15 minutes
		<u>Follow-Up (Problem Solving / General support)</u>	15 minutes
		<u>Referral</u>	15 minutes
<u>Other Professional Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Legal Services</u>	15 minutes
		<u>Permanency Planning</u>	15 minutes
		<u>Tax preparation</u>	15 minutes
<u>Oral Health Care</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Diagnostic</u>	1 Visit
		<u>Preventative</u>	1 Visit

Formatted: Header

Deleted: ¶  
Formatted: Footer, Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single

**REVISED 3/8/18**

<u>Oral Health Care Continued..</u>		<u>Therapeutic</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
<u>Outpatient / Ambulatory Medical Care</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Diagnostic Service - Primary Care</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
		<u>Diagnostic Service - Specialist Care</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
		<u>Therapeutic - Primary Care</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
		<u>Therapeutic - Specialized Care</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
		<u>Treatment Adherence</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
		<u>Vision Care Visit</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
<u>Outreach Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Encounter (Cannot be Delivered Anonymously)</u>	<u>1 HIV+ Case Identified</u>
		<u>Referrals (Cannot be delivered Anonymously)</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Follow Up (Cannot be delivered anonymously)</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
<u>Psychosocial Support Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Bereavement Counseling</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Caregiver Support Group</u>	<u>30 minutes Per Person</u>
		<u>Counseling</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>HIV Support Group</u>	<u>30 minutes Per Person</u>

Formatted: Header

Deleted: 1 ¶  
Formatted: Footer, Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single

**REVISED 3/8/18**

<u>Psychosocial Support Services Continued...</u>		<u>Non-Professional Nutritional Counseling</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Pastoral Care</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
<u>Referral for Health Care / Supportive Services</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Referral Health Care / Supportive Services</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
<u>Respite Care</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Respite Care-Community</u>	<u>1 Day</u>
		<u>Respite Care - In Home</u>	<u>1 Hour</u>
<u>Substance Abuse Services - Outpatient</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Acupuncture (Can only be provided if part of a treatment plan)</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
		<u>Counseling / Behavioral Health</u>	<u>15 minutes</u>
		<u>Harm Reduction</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
		<u>Medication Assisted Therapy</u>	<u>1 dose</u>
		<u>Neuro Psychiatric Medication</u>	<u>1 dose</u>
		<u>Pre-Treatment Recovery Readiness</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
		<u>Relapse Prevention</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
<u>Substance Abuse Services - Residential</u>	<u>See Service Standard Definition</u>	<u>Acupuncture (Can only be provided if part of a treatment plan)</u>	<u>1 Visit</u>
		<u>Substance Abuse Residential</u>	<u>1 Day</u>

Formatted: Header

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single, Keep lines together

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Footer, Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single